INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

%

To the Members of lce Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Ice Gate Educational Institute Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as “Ind AS financial staternents”)

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confor?nit‘y with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") prescribed under
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its loss (including other comprehensive
income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apbropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 42 of the statemnent which indicates that the Company’s net worth has got
eroded as of March 31, 2022 and the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets. These
conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

Our report is not modified in respect of this matter,




Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Stanidards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recerds, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
- audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control,




. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal financial control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial staternents or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as'a going concern.

.« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contrel that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in "Annexure 1%, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {includir\wg Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the baoks of account;




e. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed under
saction 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;
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The matter described under the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern, may- have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

g. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

=

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our
separate report in “Annexure 2",

j. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable;

k. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

(ii} The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the
question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the




Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notlice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sith-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b} above,

contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the
compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

For NKSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
|CAI Firm Registration No. 020076

Naresh Sharma
Partner
Membership No.: 089123
UDIN: 2208912 3AKNMIK4787

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 19, 2022



AMNEXURE 170 THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Ice Gate Educational Institute
Private Limited (“the Company”) on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information,
explanations and written representation given to us by the management and the books of account
and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that;

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) During the year, the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically
verified by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
in our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property and accordingly, reporting under
clause (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(i) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year and there
are no inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable, As informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification
carried out during the year.

(i) During the year, the Company has not made investments or provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, reporting
under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees and securities. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(v) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed
to be deposits. Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable

{vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules
framed there under.

(vii)

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax (GST), provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases. During the year 2017-18, sales tax, value added
tax, service tax and duty of excise subsumed in GST and are accordingly reported under
GST.




(viii)

(xi)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues with respect

to provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, G5T, sales tax, service tax, value
added tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess, which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

We have not come across any transaction which were previously not recorded in the books
of account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(&) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly,
reporting under clause (ix) of paragrapgh 3 of the Order is not applicable.

{a)

(a)

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public issue offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause (xj(a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the baoks and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filec with the Central Government by
the auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report.

Though establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated by the Act or by SEBI LODR
Regulations and there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year and upto the date of this report.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Midhi Company. Therefore, reparting under clause
(xii} of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

in our opinion, the Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to
have an internal audit system as per the provisions of the Act. Hence, reporting under
clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Therefore, réporting under clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses for the current financial year amounting to Rs, 29,54
Lacs, However; no cash losses were incurred in the immediately preceding financial year.




(xx)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which cause us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as an
the date of this audit report and that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viabitity of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
Habilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence,
reporting under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For NKSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 020076N

Maresh Sharma

Partner

Membership No.: 089123

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 19, 2022



Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the independent
Auditor's Report of even date to the members of lce Gate Educational Institute Private Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of lce Gate Educational Institute
Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
staternents of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal- financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk,
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2022, based on the internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For NKSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration NQQQ%%OQGN
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Naresh Sharma
Partner \
Membership No.089123™

Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 May 2022



ICE Gato Educational Instituge Private Limited
Balance Shoot as on March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Agsets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Other intangible assets

Intangibles assets under development
Deferred tax assets (net)

Total non current assets

Current assats

Inventories

Financiat assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(i) Other financial assets
Other current assets

Total cuwrrent assels

Total

Equity and liabilities

- Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Mon-current liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Barrowings
(i} Trade payables
- total cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises;
- total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro and srmall enterprises
(ii#} other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Sumemary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For NKSC & Co.
Chartered Acgguntants

Nagesh Sharma
Partner
Membership No.: 08912«3\

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 19, 2022

MNoke

3 {(a}
3(b)
3y

WL s

10
11

12
13

14
15

16
17
18

As at Ag ai

_ March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
21.29 28,72
173:99 136.08
- 2416
18.61 2.00
213.99 190.96
2279 19.69
2563 67.51
262 11.04
17.50 17.50
16,26 6.54
84.82 122.28
298.81 313,24
1.00 1.00
(14.27) 29.62
(13.27) 30.62
361 552
8.29 1142
11.90 16.94
93,70 78,64
647 3.98
89.21 52.62
65.00 52,33
4569 78.01
0.11 0.10
300,18 265.68
312.08 28262
298,81 313,24
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For and on l;?“alf of the Board of Director of

lce Gate Edyictaional Institute Private Limited
Pl
A s
e &
Gautkam Puri Hiinans
Director Director

DIN: 00033548

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 19, 2022

DIN: 07986359

Place: Mew Dethi
Date: May 19, 2022



ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
Staiement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are Rupess fn lacs unless otherwise stated)

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements,
As per-our report of even date.

For NKSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registratign No. 020076N
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iote Year ended Vear anded
Wiarch 31, 2022 Wiarch 31, 2021

Aevenue
Revenue from operations 19 239.23 455.3)
Other income 20 9.36 11.37
Total revenue (1} 248.59 466,68
Expanses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 21 14.03 547
Changes in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress 22 (2.09) 0,36
Employee benefit expenses 23 2529 5598
Finance costs 24 9.73 11.53
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 25 3382 4797
Service delivery expenses 26 94.38 225.86
Sales & marketing expenses 27 17.81 39,95
Other expenses 28 119.98 112.20
Total expanses (1) 311,95 499,33
(Loss) before tax (1}-(11) (63.36) (32.65)
Less: tax expense
- Cuirent tax for prior year - 9.54
- Deferred tax 39 {17.36) (6.73)
Total tax expense {17.36) 2.81
{Loss) after tax (46.90) (35.46)
Other comprehensive income
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

" Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 2.86 1.05
Income tax relating to these items (0.74) (0.27)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of income tax) 2,12 0,78
Total comprehensive {loss) (43.88) {34.68)
{Loss) per equity share (in Rs.):
Nominal value of Rs. 10 each (Previous year Rs, 10 each)
-Basic & diluted earning per share 29 {460.05) (354.56}
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

For and on Behglf of the Board of Director of
fce Gate Edw:%”wnal Institute Private Limited

Gautam Puri
Director
DIN: 00033548

DIN: 07986359

Piace: New Delhi
Date: May 19, 2022

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 19, 2022

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 19,2022




IGE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
Cash Flow Statemerit for the year anded Warch 31, 2022
(Al amounts are fupees in Lacs unless otherwise staled)

A Cash flow from operating activities
Met profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Finance cast (excluding interest on delayed payment of income tax)
Bad debts written off

Provision for grautity

Liabilities no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income

Loss on sale of assets

Other Eomprehen;i\re income

Inventory written off

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustiments for (increase) / decrease in oporating assets:
Right to use assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Current financial asset-loans

Other current finarcial assets

Other current assets

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Non-current provisions

Lease liability

Trade payables

Other non current liabilities

Other current financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Current provisions

Cash generated frorm operations

Taxes and interest thereon paid

Net eash generated from operating activities {A)
B Cash flow from investing activities:

Capital expenditure on fixed assets
Interest income received
Net cash (used in) investing activities {B)

Year ended Year ended
Mereh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(63.36) (32.65)
33.82 A47.97
9.73 7.28
57.49 27.65
- 1.99
(9.34) {6.98)
- {4.40)
0.22 .
212 -
- 463
10,68 45,49
i
. 36,49
(3.11) (4.26)
(15.62) 4369
- 0.96
- {29.36)
{9.74) 75.62
(1.92) 1.22
- (39.35)
9.34 4151
(3.12) (22:61)
12,67 15.64
(32.32) (129.79)
0.01 (1.95)
{(13.12) 33.30
0.77 {12.57)
{12.36) 20.74
(40.47) (44.59)
(40.47) {44.59)

Continued on next page....




{CE Ginte BEducational Institute Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2022
Al anmounts are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)
.Continued from previous page

€ Cash Flow from financing activities:

Repayment of berrowings during the year (0.78) (1.09)
Additional loans during the year 15.84 27.94
Interest and other borrowings costs paid (9.73) (7.28)
Met cash generated from financing activities () 5.33 19.57
Met (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B4+T) {47.49) {4.28)
Cash and cash equivalents

-At beginning of the year 11.04 15.34
Add: Deposits with maturity less than 3 months from balance sheet date - -
-At end of the year ' {36.46) 11.06

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with banks:

= On current accounts 0.07 7.44
Cash en hand 2.55 3.60
: ) 2,62 11.04
Motes :

i. Companents of cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 7)
Balances with banks

—on current accounts 0.07 744
Cash on hand 2.55 3.60
2,62 11,04

ii. Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities and financial assets arising from financiniy activities,

Particulars March 37, 2021] Cash flows | Non tash changes- March 31, 2022
) Fair value changes
Short-term borrowings 78.64 15,05 - 93,70

iil. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as setout in Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Staternerits.
iv The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes 1 to 45

As per our report of even date.

A
Far NKSC & Co. For and on bel;fi!f,g:f the Board of Directors of
‘Chartered Accountants Ice Gate Educafional Institute Private Limited

Firm gis/ﬂa No. 020076K -~ E:g“i
= , ¢ e s 4

Nares p

Partner Lo Director {

Membership Mo Dﬂ‘ﬁg : DIN: 00033548 DIN: 07986359
\J

Place: New Delhi Place: New Dethi Place: New Dethi
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ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited

Statement of chanages in eguity for the vear ended March 312022

(Al amounts are Rupees in Lacs uriless othenwise statecd)

Equity share capital

Eauity share capital

Particalars Number Aimoung Amount
. Balance as at Apyil 01, 2020 10,000 1.00 1.00
Change in equity share capital during the year - - -
Tptal Share capital as at March 31, 2021 10,000 1.00 1.00
Balance as at April 01, 2021 10,000 1.00 1.00
Change in equity share capital during the year S - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 10,000 1.00 1.00
Other equity
Particulars Attributable to owners of the company
Reserves & Surplus Remeasurement | Total attvibutable to
Retained earnings of defined benefit| to owners of the
plans company
Balance as at 1 April 2020 60.31 3.99 64.30
(Loss) for the year (35.46) - (35.46)
Other comprehensive income - 0.78 0.78
Total comprehensive income {35.46) 0,78 (34.68)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 24.85 4.77 29.62
(Loss) for the year (46.00) - {46.00)
Other comprehensive Income - 2.12 2,12
Total comprehensive income {46.00) 2,12 {43.88)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 {21.15) 6.89 {14.27)

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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ICE Gate Educational lnstitute Private Limited
Notes to the financial staternents for the year andad March 31, 2022
(Al amoupts dre Ripees fn Lacs unless othenvise stated):

3{a) Proparty, plant 8 equipmant

Gross Block Preperty, plant and ¢
Furnitura and Elacteical Office Computers Tatal
Fixtures Installation Equipment
Balance as at Aprif 01, 2020 17.80 6.39 16.51 9.33 50.03
Additions - - = - -
Disposal/transfer - - - - -
Halance as at March 31, 2021 -(8) 17.80 6,39 16.51 9,33 50,03
Balance as at April 01, 2021 17.80 639 1651 933 50,03
Additions - - 028 - 0.28
Disposal/transter 0.07 0,85 - - 0.92
Bal, as at March 31, 2022 -(B) 17.73 5.54 | 16.79 9.33 49.3%
Accumulated depreciation Propert nt and equipme
Furniture And Electrical Office Computers Total
Fixtures Enstallation Equipment
Bal as at April 01, 2020 218 091 509 519 1337
Deprediation charge for the year 1.90 0.61 314 229 7.94
‘giiposa‘lllransfer - = - - -
Bals as at March 31, 2021 -(C) 4.08 1.52 B3 7.48 | 21,31
Balance as at April 91,2021 4.08 1.52 823 748 2131
Depreciation charge for the year 1.90 0.61 316 1.29 6.96
gjipesallt«ansfer .04 0.23 - - 0.28
Bal; as at March 31, 2022 -(D) 5.94 1.20 11.39 8,77 27.9%
Carrying Ameunt Property, plank and equipmant
Furniture And Electrical Offite Computers | Total
Fixturos Instaliation Equipment
As at March 31, 2021 (A-C) 13.72 4.87 | 8.28 1.85 28.72
As at March 31, 2022 {B-C) 11,7% 3.64 g__g_g 0.56 ZEL
Note:

i.  Thereare noimpairment losses recognised during the year,
il There are no exchange differences adjusted in praperty, plant & equipfment.
iii. Refer note 25 for depreciation




{CE Gate Educational institute Private Limited

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts are Rupees inLacs unless otherwise stated)

3 (b) Intangible Assets

Gross Block Intangible Assets
Content GATE Flix Tetal
Development
| Balance as at April 01, 2020 123,15 61,08 184.22
Additions 2043 - 2043
" ; - - -
Balance as at March 371, 2021 (A) 143.58 61.08 204.66
_Balance as at Aprif 01,2021 143,58 6108 204,66/
Additions 37.87 26.90 64,77
Balance as at Mareh 31,2022 (B) 181.45 87.98 269.43
Accurmulated depreciation Intangible Assets
Content GATE Flix Total
I 1 went
| Balance as at April 01, 2020 2855 - 2655
| Depreciation.chatae for the year 2181 12.22 4003
Balance as at March 31,2021 (C) 56,36 12,22 68,58
Balance as at April 01, 2021 56,36 12.22 68.58
Depreciation charae for the vear 18.85 8.01 26.86.
 Disposal/transfer - - .
Balance as at March 31, 2022- (D) 15.21 20.23 95,44 |
Carrying Amount Intangible Assets
Content GATE Flix Total
T, ] +
As at March 31, 2021 (A-C) 87.22 48.86 136,08
As at March 31, 2022 (B-D) 106,24 67.75 173.99

Note i

Intangible Assets includes content development & Gate Flix which is internally generated intangible assets and are

amortised overa period of 7 & 10 years,




ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(Al amounts are Rupees in unless otherwise siated)

3 () Details of internally generated intanaibls assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount Content GATE Flix Total
development
Balance as at April 01, 2020 123,15 61.08 184.23
Additions during the year 20.43 - 20.43
Disposals during the year - - -
Balance as at March 371, 2021~ (4) 143.58 61.08 204,66
Balance as at April 01, 2021 143,58 61.08 204,66
Additions during the year 37.88 26,90 64.79
Disposals during the year - . -
Balance as at March 31, 2022- (B) 181.46 87.98 269,45
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
Balance as at April 01, 2020 28.55 - 28.55
Amortisation for the year 27.81 12,22 40,03
Disposals during the year - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 (C) 56.36 12.22 68.58
Balance as at April 01, 2021 56.36 12,22 68.58
Amortisation for the year 18:85 8.01 26.86
Disposals during the year - - “
Balance as at March 31, 2022- (D) 75.21 20.23 95.44
Carrying amount {net)
Ag at March 31, 2021 (A-C) 87.22 48.86 136.08
As at March 31, 2022 (B-D) 106.25 67.75 174.00

i. Content is at the core of the offering of the test preparation product and is an intellectual property. It includes content in form of books,
questions and solutions, mock tests, vedio lectures and analysis af test papers, Amortisation is caleulated to write off the cost of content over their
estimated useful life { 7 years) using the straight-fine method.

ii. GATEFlix is a next-gen product being developed by ICE GATE Institute Pvt Ltd to facilitate easy learning techniques amongst students pursuing
GATE (General Apptitute Test in Engineering}. It is ‘being developed as a comprehensive platform wherein students would be able to attend tive
classes of all the subjects and also be able to access all the lectures, notes, Test series and other study materials onfine. The software is amortised
over the estimated useful life (10 years) using the straight-line-method

3(h). Intanaibles assats under development

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Opening balance 24.16 -
Add: Addition during the year 1.85 24.16
Less: Capitalized during the year (26.07) -
Closing balance - 24,16

Intangibles assets under development ageing

Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of
0-1 years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than Total
3 years
As at March 31, 2022 - = ~ - - -
As at March 31, 2021 24.16 - - - 24.16




ICE Gata Educational Institute Private Limited
Motes ko the financial statenments for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Dafarred tasx assets

As at Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Met deferred tax assets (Refer note 39) 18.61 2.00
18,61 2,00

In assessing the realisability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is reasonable, that some pertion, or all, of the deferred tax
assets will be realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of futlre taxable income during the period
in'which the temporary differences become deductible,

Inventories

As at As at
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

Valued at cost or NRY whichaver is lower

Stock'in trade- text books ) 22.79 19.69
22,79 19.69

Trade receivablos

As at Agat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Unsecured, Considered good 25:63 67.51
Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk 1.00 .
Less : ECL provision on trade receivables (1.00} B
25.63 67,51
Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:
Total trade receivables from related parties (Refer note 36) 0.21 0.21
0.21 0.21
Trade receivable ageing schedule
Current but Trade receivable aging Total
not due Lessthan 6 months  1-2 Years 2-3 Years Meore Than
) 6 months  to 1vears 3 years
As at 31st March 2022 '
Undisputed trade receivables- - 2.89 367 6.92 4.74 7.41 25.63
considered good
Undisputed trade receivables- = - - - - 1.00 1.00

which have significant

increase in credit risk

Undisputed trade receivables- - - - - - {1,003 (1.00)
credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables- - - - - . N
considered good

Disputed trade receivables- - - - - - . .
which have significant

increase in credit risk

Disputed trade receivables- « - - - - . _
credit impaired

. 2.89 3.67 6.92 4.74 7.41 25.63




ICE Gata Educational Institute Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2027
(Al amounts are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise statod)

As at 15t March 2021

Undisputed trade receivables- B 395 1.20

considered good
Undisputed trade raceivables- - . .

_.which have significant

increase in cradit risk

Undisputed trade receivables- - - :
credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables- - - -
considered good

Disputed trade receivabiles- - - .
which have significant

increase in credit risk

Disputed trade receivables- - “ “

~credit impaired

17.85

44.51

67.51

= 3.95 1.20

17.85

44.57

67.51

Motes:

The Company has measured expected credit loss of trade receivable based on simplified approach as per Ind AS 109

note 5o 37)

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process (Refer Note no 37
Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are Rormally received in normal operating eycle,

"Financial Instriments', (Refer

No trade or other receivable are due from director or other officer 6f the Company and firms or private companies in which any director is a

partner, a director or a member either jointly or severafly with other persons except as stated above.

For terms and condition of trade receivable owing from related parties (Refer iote 37)

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks in current account
Cash on hand

Notes:
For explanation on the Company risk management process (Refer note 37

© Other current financial asset

Unsecured, considered good unless stated
Security deposits

Notes:
For'explanation on the Company sisk management process (Refer note 37)

Othor current assets

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Advance to suppliers

Prepaid expenses

Balance with Government authorities

o ‘Space intentionally left blank....

As at
March 31, 2022

Asat
March 31, 2021

0.07 744

2.55 3.60

2.62 11,04
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

17.50 17.50
17,50 17.50
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
16.11 5.87
- 0.17
0.17 0.50
16,28 6.54




ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
MNotes ko the financial statements for the yesr ended Wiarch 371, 2022
(Al amourts arg Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise siated)

10 Equity share capital

a. The Company has only one class of share capital having a par value of €10 pey share, Referred to harain as squity shaves,

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Authorisad shares
10,000 (March 31, 2021: 10,000) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paic up 1.00 1.00
Issuad, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
16,000 (March 31, 2021: 10,000} equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00

b, Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year,

Particulars Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Mumnber Amount in € Number Amount in €
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Shaves outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 1,00 10,000 1.00

¢. Termsfrights attached to equity share

Voting
Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 6ne vote per share held.

Dividend
The. Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors:is subject to approval of the
shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed. The Company has not distributed
any dividend in the currant year and previous year.

Liquidation

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity sharas shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company
aftes distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

d. Details of shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/associates and shareholders holding more
than 5% of equity sh of the Company

Particulars Nature of Relationship March 37, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number % of Holding Number % of Holding
CL Educate Limited Holding Company 6,950 69.50% 5,895 58.95%
Rohan Garg Director/Promoter 2,550 25.50% 3,000 30.00%
Lloyd Palikardy Directer/Promoter 500 5.00% 885 8.85%

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharehalders/members, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial
ownerships of shares,

e. No class of shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid
up by way of bonus shares or bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

f. Details of shares held by promoters and promoters group

Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up held by

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Mumber % of total % thange Number % of total shares
of shares shares during the year of shares
- Mr. Rohan Garg 2,550 2550% ~15.00% 3,000 30.00%
- M. Liyod Palikandy 500 5.00% ~43.50% 885 8.85%
- Mr, Manu Abraham - 0.00% -100.00% 110 1.10%

- Mr. Vikas Chaudhary - 0.00% -100.00% 110 1.10%
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ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
blotes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(Alfamounts are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Other equity

As at As at
Wiareh 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Opening balance 24,85 60.31

Net loss for the year {46.00) (35.46)
Closing balance (a) (21.15) 24,85

Other comprehensive income

Opening balance 477 3.99

Add: Other comprehensive incorme for the year 212 0.78

Closing balance (b) 6.89 4.771

Total other equity (a+h) (14.27) 29,62

Non-current provisions

Provision for gratuity (refer note 35) 3.61 5.52
Total 3.61 5,52

Other non-current liabilities

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Unearned revenue on education services . 8.29 11.42
Total 8.29 11.42

Current financial liabilities

As at Asat

Mavch 37,2022  Warch 31, 2021
Borrowings
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand
From holding company (refer footnote i) 75.60 64.80
From others. (refer footnote ii) 18.10 13.84
Total - : 93,70 78.64

Eor amount outstanding as at March 31, 2022

i, Loan represents interest bearing unsecured loan taken from holding company repayable on:demand, It carries an interest rate ranges from
B8.25% to 11.50% per annum,

ii. Loan represents interest rate ranges from 8.25% to 11.50% unsecured loan taken from others repayable on demand.

ifi. For explanation on the Company liquidity risk managemant process refer note 37) ‘

iv. For related party transactions refer note 36)

Trade payables

Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; 647 398
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 89.21 52,62
Tatal 95.68 56.60

Of the above, trade payable towards related parties are as below:

Total trade payable towards related parties (Refer note 36) 86.63 62,30
86,63 §2.30
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ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(AN amounts are Rupees fn Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulara Logs than Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total
1 year 1-2 Years  2-3 Years More Than Unbilled
3 years payable
As at 31 March 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 647 - - - - 6547
andl small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of ereditors other 44,58 31.04 1142 2,16 - 89.20
than micre enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small - - - - - -
enterprises
Disputed dues -of creditors other than micro - - - - - -
enterprises and small enterprises
51.05 31.04 i1.42 2,16 . 95,67
Asat 31 Mareh 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 398 - - = - 3.98
and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other 19.65 30.83 214 - - 52.62
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small - - - - - .
enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro - - - . . -
enterprises and small enterprises
23.63 30.83 2.14 - - 56.60
Mote:
Trade payables are non interest bearing and are normally settled in narmally settled in normal trade cycle.
For explanation on the Company liquidity risk management process Refer note 37)
Other financial lahilities
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 371, 2021
Employee related payables 65.00 5233
Total 65.00 52.33
Mote:
For explanation on the Company liquidity risk management process Refer note 37)
Other current liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statutory dues 2.06 10.27
Unearned revenue on education services 4363 67.74
Total 45,69 78.01
Current provisions
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for gratuity {refer note 35) 0.11 0,10
Total 0.11 0,10
7
74

b
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ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemonts for the vear ended March 37, 2002
(Al amounts are Rupees in Lacs unless othervise stated)

Revenue from operations
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of praducts
- Sale of text book 47,18 42,62
Sale of services
- Education service 183.44 412,69
230.62 455,31
Othar operating revenues
Content development fee 8.61 -
8.61 -
Total 239,23 455.31
Note
The revenue from sale of books are net off rebate and discounts,
it includes revenue from related party (Refer note 36)
Disaggregated revenue information as per geographical markets
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Geographical markets
India Querseas Total
Educational training 183,44 - 183,44
Sale of education material 47.18 - 47,18
Total 230,62 - 230,62 -
Disaggregated revenue information as per geographical markets
For the year ended 31 Mareh 2021
Geographical markets
India Overseas Total
Educational Training 412,69 - 412,69
Sale of education material 42.62 - 42.62
Total 455,31 - 455,34
Changes in contract liablity are as follows:- Year ended Year ended

Mareh 31, 2022

March-31, 2021

Opening balance (refer note 13 & 17) 79.16. 237.87
Revenue recognised that was deducted from trade receivables as unearned revenue balance {68.09) (211.32)
- at the beginning of the year (refer note 17)
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amount recoghised as revenue during 40.86 52.61
the year )
Closing Balance at the end of the year (Refer Note 13 & 17) 51.92 79.16
The transaction price allocated to the remaining perfor obligations (unsatisfied or Year ended Year ended
partially unsatisfied) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within one year { Refer Note 17) 43,63 67.74
More than one year ( Refer Note 13) 8.29 11.42
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1CE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited

Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2022

(4l amounts are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise siated)
Other income

Other non-operating income

Discount income

Motice pay recovery

Liability written back
Miscellaneous income

Purchase of stock in trade

Text bocks (refer note 36)
Total

Chanages in inventories of stock in trade

Opening stock of traded goods
Less: closing stock of traded goods
Met (increase)/decrease

Employee benefit expenses

Salary, wages, bonus and other benefits

Gratuity expenses (refer note 35)

Contribution to provident and other funds {refer note 35}
Staff welfare expenses

Finance cost

Iriterest on borrowings
Interest on statutory dues

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation on tangible assets (rafer note 3a)
Amortization on intangible assets (refer note 3b)

Service delivery expenses

Service delivery expense

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year endac
March 31, 2021

- 0,06
(.02 -
9.34 698
- 4,33
936 11,37
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 Maveh 31, 2021
14.03 547
14,03 547
Year encded Year ended

Mareh 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

19.69 20,05

22.79 19.69

(3.09) 0.36
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

23.57 51.76
096 1.99
042 2.02
0.34 021
25,29 55.98
Year ended Year ended
~ March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
8.24 7.28
1.49 4.25
9.73 11.5%
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
6.96 7.94
26.86 40,03
33.82 47.97
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
94,38 225.86
94,38 22586
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ICE Gate Edurational institute Private Limitad

Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 20272

(A amounts are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Salas & marketing oxpenses

Year ended Yeayr ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advertisement & marketing expenses 2.74 2.63
Digital marketing cost 15.07 37.32
17.81 39,95
Othor axpenses
Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Auditors rermnuneration (refer note (i) below) 3.00 355
Traveling & conveyance expenses 3.01 2.01
Rent (refer note 36) 1148 14,88
Repair & maintanance 2.14 4.14
Bad debts 57.49 27.65
Inventory written off - 463
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.22 -
Banlk charges 0.23 0.25
Electricity charges 417 3.03
Administrative expenses 4.55 334
Legal and professional fees 1.76 4.31
Retainer 2543 21.46
Rates and taxes 493 22.66
Miscellaneous-expenses 1.57 0.29
119.98 1i2.20
Notes:
i. Remuneration to Auditor (excluding goods & service tax)
Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 Maveh 31, 2021
Statutory audit 3.00 355
3.00 3.55
E-“I SLKe B ﬂifE |Biﬁ§m'EE!ﬁiiﬂ:i|E 5!5 3
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Basic & diluted earnings per share (Refer Note i & ii) (460.05) (354.56)
MNaorsinal value per share 1000 10.00
i. Profit attributable to equity shareholders
Profit for the year {46.00) (35.46)
Profit attributable to equity shareholders {(416.00) (35.46)
ii. Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Opening balance of issued equity shares 10,000.00 10,000.00
Effect of shares issued during the year, if any - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS ) 10,000.00 10,000.00

At present, the Company does not have any dilutive potential equity share,
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ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
Muotes to the financial stataments for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts are Rupees in Lacs urifess otherwise stated)

Contingent labilitios
There are no contingent fiabilities as at March 31, 2022; (March 31, 2021 Rs. Mil).

Commitments
There are no capital or other material commitments as at March 31, 2022 ; (March 31, 2021 Rs, Nil),

Disclosura as per Ind AS 108 on 'Oparating segments
Segment information is presented in respect of the company's Key operating segments. The operating segments are based on the company's managemernt
and internal reporting structure.

Operating Segments
The board of directors have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM?, since they are responsible for all major decision w.rt. the

preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger and acquisition, and expansion of any
facility. The Company’s board reviews the results of "infrastructure facilities and related services" on a quarterly basis. The company's board of direetors uses
Earning Before Interest, Tax and Depreciation (EBITDAY) to assess the performance of the operating segments. Accordingly, there is only one Reportable
§ 1t for the Company which is "Consumer Test Preparation Seevices”, hence no specific disclosures have been made.

Entity wide disclosures

Information about products and services
Company deals in one business namely "Consumer Test Preparation Services”, Therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

Information about geographical areas
Company operates under single geographic location, there are no separate reportable geographical segments.

Information about major customers (from external customars)
During the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 no single cuistomer reprasents 10% of more of the Company's total revenue.

Leases
The company has applied Ind AS 116 with the date of initial application of 1st Apiil, 2079, As a result, the company has changed its accounting policy for lease
contracts as per Ind AS 116 the accounting policy point 7.

Company as "Lessee”
The Company has significant leasing agreements in respect of operating leases for itsvarious office premises & godowns. These lease arrangements are for a
period upto 11 months.

Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Entergrise Development Ack, 2006:

As at Asat

March 37, 2022 March 31, 2021
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to ary MSME supplier as - .
at the end of each accounting year included in
Principal amount die to micro and small enterprises 647 3.98
Interest due on above R )
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED ACT 2006 along - .
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year
The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day - -
during each accounting Half year,
The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have - -
been paid but beyond the appeintment day during the year) but without adding the Interest
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006,
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untit - .

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.
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Employeo benefits

The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit/contribution plans-in India.
A, Defined contribution plans:

The Company miakes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and
EDLY, which are defined contribution plans. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue,

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

0.42

202

Contribution to provident fund and other fund {refer note 23)

B. Defined benefit plan:
Gratuity

The Company operates & post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. This plan entitles an employee to receive half month's salary for each year of

completed service at the time of retirement/exit.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
as giving rise to additional employee benefit entitlemant and measures each unit separately to build up the final

The most recent actuarial valuation and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for

which recognize each half year of service
obligation.

gratuity were carried out as at 31 March 2022, The present

value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit-Credit Method.,

A, The following table set out the status of the detined benafit obligation

Net definad benefit liability

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 20211

Liability for gratuity 3.72 5.62
Total employae benefit liabilities 3.72 5.62
Nan-current {refer note 12) 361 5.52
Current {refer note 18) 0.1 0.10
B. Reconciliation of the net defined henefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net definad benefit (assety fiability and its components:
Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
Defined benefit  Fair value of Net defined  Defined banefit  Fair value of plan Net defined
abligation plan assets benefit obligation assets benefit
(asset)/ liability (assat)/ Hability
Balance at the beginning of the year 562 - 562 5.41 - 541
Included in profit or loss )
Current service cost 0.58 - 0.58 1.62 - 1.62
Interest cost {income} 0.38 - 0.38 0.37 - 0.37
0.96 - 0.96 1.99 - 1.99
Included in OCI
Remeasurements loss {gain)
- Actuarial foss (gain) arising from: - R R )
- Financial assumptions - - - = . .
- Experience adjustment {2.86) - {2.86) {1.05) - (1.05)
(2,86) - {2.86) {1.05) = (1.05)
Othar
Contributions paid by the employer - - - - - _
Benefits paid - - - 0.73) - (0.73)
- - - - 0.73) - 0,73}
Balance at the end of the year 372 - 3.72 5.62 . 5.62
Exg gnised in the Stat t of profit and loss {refer note 23) Year ended Year ended
March 37, 2022 March 31, 2021
Service cost 0.58 1.62
Net interest cost 0.37 0.37
0,94 1,99
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C, Actuarial assumptions

) Econamic assumptions

The principal assumptions-are the discount rate and salacy growti rate. The discount rite is based upon the market yields available on government bonds at
the accounting date with a term that matches. that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors on long term basis. Valuation aaumptions are as follows which have been selected by the company.

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 1.26% 6.76%
Expected rate of future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market.

b) Demographic assumptions

As at As at
March 31, 2022 Wlarch 31, 2021
i) Retirement age (years) 58,00 58,00
iy Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 1ALM (2012-14} ALM (2012-14)
iif) Ages Withdrawal rate (%) Withdrawal rate (%)
Upto 30 years 3.00% 3.00%
From 31 to 44 years 200% 200%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00%

E. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the refevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assurnpiions canstant,

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31, 2021
Increase Decrease Increasa Pecrease
Discount rate (0.50% movernent} (0.47) 052 (0.46) 0,51
Future salary.-growth (0.50% movement} 053 (0.48) 0.51 (0.46)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows éxpected under the plan, it does provide an approximation »f the sensitivity
of the assumptions shown.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensicns before retirement and life expectancy are not
applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement. *

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follow -

A) Salary increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liabifity. Increase in safary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the
liability.

B) Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.
€) Mortality & disabitity ~ Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabifities.

D) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact
Plan's liability.

E, Expected maturity analvsis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Duration of defined benefit obligation

Less than 1 year 011 0.10
Between 1-2 years .08 0.07
Between 2-5 years ‘ 0.22 033
Over 5 years 331 5.13
Total 372 563

Expacted contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the period ending March 31, 2023 are Rs. 2:19 lacs (Maich 31, 2022 are Rs, 0.90 Jacs),
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at period ending March 31, 2022 is 19.74 years {March 31, 2021: 19.09 years).
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Related Party Disclosure

In.accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Refated Party Disclosures, the names of the related parties where control exists: and/or with whom
transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationiships, as identified and certified by the management are:

(a) List of valated parties
(i) Related parties where control exists:

Relationship Name of related paity
Holding Company CL Educate Limited

(ii) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place:

Relationship Mame of related party

Enterprises inwhich key management personnel and their relatives 1. Phoenix Academny

are able to exercise significant influence 2. Zenith Learning Services Pvi, Lid.

Key Management Personnel 1. Mr. Rohan Garg

Relatives of Key Management Personnel 1. Ms. Rajrani Garg- Maother of Rohan Garg

{h) Details of related party transactions are as below:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021

1.Revenue from operations
a, Dther operating revenue

- CL Educate Limited (Content development fee) 8.61 .
2. Purchase of Books

- CL Educate Limited 10.70 u
3. Fxpanses

-Zenith Learning Services Put. Ltd. 6.40 10.68
b. Rent Expenses

-Rajrani Garg 750 7.50
d. Employee cost

- Rohan Garg 33.00 24,75
e, Interest on borrowings

« CL Educate Limited 6.45 5.76
- Phoenix Academy 140 0.67
@, Cost Sharing Expenses

- CL. Educate Limited 13.10 24.83
4. Borrowings made

- CL Educate Limited 5.00 11.00
- Phoenix Academy 3.00 11.00
5. Barrowings repaid

- CL Educate Limited - 0:60
5. Conversion of interest into loan

~ €L Educate Limited 5.80 532

* Phoenix Academy 1.26 0.62
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Batance outstanding with or from relatad parties as:

Year anded Vear ended
. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Trade payable
~CL Educate Limited 57.89 31,13
- Rajrani Garg 19.30 12.55
- Zenith Learning Services Private Limited 9.44 18862

86.63 62,30
Trade Recaivable
- CL Educate Limited 0.21 0.21

0.21 0.21

Short term borrawings
-CL Educate Limited 75.60 64,80
-Phoenix Academy 18,09 13.84
Employes Ralatad Payable
-Rohan Garg {Director) i 50,34 20.66

{el) Termys and conditions of transactions with the related parties
i. The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel were no more favorable than those available, or which might reasonably be
expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-key management personnel refated entities on an arm's length basis.

i All outstanding balances with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis and are to be settled in cash. None of the balances are secured,

iii.. For the year endled March 31, 2022 the Cumpany has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related party (March 31,
2021: Rs, Nil). This assessment is undertaken each firancial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the
related party operates.
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Fair valua measurement and financial instrumants
Financial instrumants — by category and fair values hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial fiabilities, including their fevels in the fair value

As on March 31, 2022

Particulars Carrying valua Fair value measurament using

: o FVTPL FVOCE | Amorlised cost Total Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3
Financial asaats
Current
Trade receivables “ “ 25.63 25.63 “ - "
Cash and cash equivalents - “ 2.62 2.62 - - -
Gther financial assets - - 17.50, 17.50 - - 2
Total - - 45,75 45,75 . . B

Financial liabilities

Current

Borrowings - - 93,70 93,70 - - -
Trade payables - - 95.67 95.67, - - .
Other financial liabilities - - 65.00 65.00 - - -
Lease liabilities - - E - - N B
Total - - 254.37 254,37 - B -

As on March 31, 2021

Particulars | Carrying value Fair valug measuremant using
FYTPL FVOCI | Amortised cost Total Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Current

Trade receivables - - 67.51 67.51 - - .
Cash and cash equivalents - - 11.04] 11.04 - - -
Other financial assets - - 17.50 17.50 - - .
Total - » 96,05 96.05 - § .

Financial liabilities

Current

Borrowings - - 78,64 78.64] - P “
| Trade payables - - 56.60 56.60 . - :

Other financial liabilities - - 5233 52,33 - B s

Lease liabilities - - B .

Total - - 187.57 187.57 " - .

Level T: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are riot traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as little as passible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in fevel 2,

‘Level 3: |f one or more of the significant inputs.is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The fair value of

financial assets and liabilities included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with generally accepted priciag models based on discounted cash
fiow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions arid dealer quotes of similar instruments.
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The Company's  borrowings have been contracted at fixed rates of interest. Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including
interest accrued but not due) which approximates fair value,

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the
fair values, due to their short-term nature, Fair value of non-current financial assets which includes bank deposits {due for maturity after twalve
months from the reporting date) anel security deposits is similar to the carrying value as there is no significant differances between carrylng
value and fair value.

The fair value for security deposits were calculated based on discounted cash flows using a current lending rate, They are classified as level 3
fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of uniobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk,

Valuation processes
The Management. performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis,
including level 3 fair values.

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the foilowing risks arising from financial instrumants:
« Credit risk

= Liquidity risk

= Interest rate risk

Risk managemant framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the- establishment and oversight of the Company's risk managemert
frarnework. The Board of Directors have authorised senior management to establish the processes and ensure conteol ovar fisks through the
mechanism of properly defined framework in line with the businesses of the company.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risks limits
and controls, to- monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk managernent policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company's activities,

The Campany has policies covering.specific areas, such as interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, other price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and
the use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments, Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed on a continuous basis.

. Space intentioanlly foft blank.
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Financial risk management {(continued)

(i) Cradit risk

Thie maximura exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 Mavch 31, 2021

Trade receivables 2563 6751

Cash and cash equivalents 2.62 11.04

Loans 17.50 17.50

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amount due frem customers. The Company maintains a defined credit policy and monitors the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.

i. Credit risk on loans is limited as the loans.are given to other related parties,

ii. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company invests in deposits with scheduted commercial banks with high credit ratings
assianed bv domestic credit rating aaencies.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and-are derived
from-revene earried from customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the economic environment in which it operates and the
Company manages its Credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continously monitoring credit worthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade
recéivable and other financial assets. The management uses a simplified approach (i.g. based on lifetime ECL} for the purpose of impairment loss
allowance, the Company estimates amounts based on the business environment in which the Company operates, and management ¢onsiders that
the trade receivables are in default (credit impaired) when counterparty fails-to make payments for receivable within the credit period allowad,
However the Company based upon historical experience determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is Rs; 25.64lacs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 67.51 lacs). Trade receivables are generally realised within the
credit period.

Gross carrying amount

Particulars As at 1 Asat
March 37, 2022 | March 31, 2021 |
0-90 days past due 1.89 3.05
91 to 180 days past due 1.01 0.88
181 to 270 days past due 1.95 10.44
271 10 360 days past due 1.38 8.62
More than 360 days 19.41 44,51
Total 25.64 67.51

tMovement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning
Impairment loss recognised / (reversed)

Balance at the end

1.60

100
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{ily Liquidity risk

b, Financial risk ranagement (continued)

fl

Liquidity risk is the risl that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
setlied by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will have: sufficient liquidity to meet its fiabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed condilions, without incurring
unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company's repulation,

The Company believes that its liguidity position, including total cash (including bank deposils under lien and excluding interest accrued but
not due} of Rs. 2.62 Lacs as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 11.04 Lacs) and the anticipated future internally generated funds from
aperations will enable i{ to meet ils future known obligations in the ordinary course of business,

Prudent liquidity risk management implies: maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the avallability of funding through an
adequate amount of credil facilifies to meet obligations when due. The Company's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding from group companies to meet its liquidity requirements in the shoit and long

term.

The Company's liguidity management process as monilored by management, includes the following:
- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring Tulure cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position-on the basis of expected cash flows.

Exposure to liguidity risk

The following are the remaining confractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The armounts are gross and undiscounted,

and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

As at

Carrying amount

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2022 Less than one Between one year More than five Total
| year to five years years
Current Financial Liabilities
Current borrowings 93.70 93,70 - 93,70
Trade payables 95.67 95.67 - 95.67
Other financial liabifities 65,00 65.00 - 65.00
Lease liabilities . . X
Total 254,37 254,37 - 254.37
As at Carrying amount Contractual cash flows )
March 31, 2021 Less than one Between one year More than five Total
year to five years years
Current financial liabilities
Current borrowings 78.64 78.64 78.64
Trade payables 56.60 56,60 - 56.60
Other financial liabilities 52,33 52.33 52.33
Lease liabilities - - -
Total 187.57 187.57 187.57
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. Financial risk management (continued)

ili. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrumerit will
two types of risk: currency iisk and interest rate risk, The objective of market risk management
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return, Since, the Company does
currency risk and other price risk is not-applicable on the Company.

Interest rate risk
Interest

uctuate because of changes in market prices. Mar

ket risk comprises

is to manage and contral market risk sxposures within
not have any foreign currency transactions and investments, the

rate risk.is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Tha

Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates; which expose the Coripany to cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk drises majoily from the term
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Co

end of the reporting period are as follows:

foans from banks carrying floating rate of interest, These abligations exposes the
mpany's horrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the

Variable-rate instruments P

As at
March 31, 2022

Current borrowings

93.70

As at

March 31, 2021

78.64

Total

93,70

78.64

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in-interest rates at the re
loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all other variables,

porting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or
in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

‘ 50 bps increase | 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease
Interest on term loans from banks

For the year ended March 31, 2022 (0.47) 0.47 (0.35) 0.35
For the year ended March 31, 2021 (0.39) 0.39 0.29) 0.29

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued e

equity holders of the Cornpany.

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall

quity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the

financing structure, The Company manages the

capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic condlitions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders,

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio,
attributable to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

raise new debt or issue new shares,

which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Borrowings 93.70 78.64
Less : Cash and cash equivalent (2,62} (11.04)
Adjusted nat debt (A) 91.08 67.60
Total equity {B) {13.27) 30.62
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) (6.87) 2.21
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Defarrad tax asset (net)
A Amounts fecognised in profit orloss

Currant fax expensa

Current year

Year ended

Year anded

Maych 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Prior pariod adjustment - 9.54
« 9.54
Dofarrad tax expanso
Change in racognised temporary differences {17.36) {6.73)
Total tax expense (17.36) {6.73)
(17,361 2,81
B. Amounts recognised in other comprehansive income
March 31, 2022 March 37, 2021
Before tax Tax Mot of tax Bafore dac  Tax (Expense)/ Net of tax
(Expense)/ Income
Remeasurements of defined benefit 2:86 {0.74) &12 105 027y 078
liability
2.86 (0.74) 212 105 (0.27) 0.78
€. Reconciliation of affective tax rate
Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
Ratle Amount fate Amount
Profit before tax 0.26 (63.36) 0.26 (32,65}
Tax using the Company's doméstic tax rate (A) (16.47) {8.49)
Tax effect of;
Rate changes impact - -
MAT credit - 1.14
Temporary differences 39 0.90
Gther (4.80) (0.28)
Total (B) 0.89) — 1.76
(A)+(B) {17.36) {6.73)
D. Movementin deferred tax balances
As at R izod  Recognized in As ak
March 31, 2021 inP&L oci March 31, 2022
Deferrad tax assets
Employee benefit 147 .24 (0.74) 097
Carried forward losses 563 20.65 - 26.28
Sub- Total (a) 710 20.89 {0.74) 27.24
Defarrad tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles (5.10) 3.27) - {8.37)
Trade receivables u 0.26) - (0.26)
Sub- total (b) {5.10) {3.53) - 18.63)
Net deferred tax asset/(Hability) (b)-(a) 2.00 17.36 0.74 18.61
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Reporiing Entity

ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited (‘the Company') is a company domiciled in India, with its registered

office situated at Shop No.101, First Floor, Amit Enclaves, B. No. 64, Swastik Society, Opposite Sagun complex,
Navrangpura Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380015. The Company was incorporated in India on August 12, 2015 to conduct

various educational and consulting programmes. The Company is providing education and test preparation training

programmes which include tuitions to school students and coaching to aspirants for a variety of entrance
examinations both at the school and graduate / post graduate levels.

1.

(i)

i)

{iii)

{iv)

Basis of preparation,

Statemnent of compliance:

These Ind AS financial staterents have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of

‘Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These Ind AS financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 19
May 2022

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are included
in note 2. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule lll to the Act.

Based on the nature of services, the operating cycle of the Company cannot be ascertained as it typically
ranges from 1 month to 2 years given the wide range of various tuitions and test preparation coaching
programmes being offered by the Company. In absence of any ascertainable operating cycle, the same
has been taken as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and
liabilities except in case of trade receivables, unearned revenue, trade payables related to franchisee fees
and prepaid franchisee fees which in view of the management are directly linked to revenue from
coaching and hence have been treated as current for the purpose of classification.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

ltems Measurerdent basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of

defined benefit obligations
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(v)

{vi)

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,

 liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

o Note no 33: lease classification.
o Note no 37: classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are
held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2020 is included in the following notes:

» Note no 3: measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment.

e Note no 3: measurement of useful lives of intangible assets.

o Note no 3: impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable:amounts

~including the recoverability of expenditure on internally- generated intangible assets.

e Note no 30: recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about
the likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources.

o Note no 35 measurement of defined benefit obligations and plan assets: key actuarial assumptions.

e Note no 37: impairment of financial assets.

e Note no 39: recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used.

Measurement of fair value

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either -

« In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole-

tevel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

‘For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on

the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each reporting date. The same are disclosed
in Note 37. :

2. Significant accounting policies

i

Revenue

Coaching and Related business of the Company includes revenue from services and sales of text books.
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount
that reflect the consideration which the company expects to receive in exchange for those product or
services at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction
price, net of any taxes/duties and discounts,

Revenue from related parties is recognized based on transaction price which is at arm's length.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by industry verticals, geography and
nature of services.

Revenue from services

Revenue in respect of coaching and related programme received from students is recognised in profit and
loss over the period of contract in proportion to the stage of completion of the services at the reporting
date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the curriculum, Fee is recorded at invoice value,
net of discounts and taxes, if any.

n s f texthoogks

Sale of text-books is recognised when the significant risk and rewards of ownership are passed onto the

customers, which is generally on dispatch/delivery of goods to the customer.

° Revenue in respect of license fees from franchisees is recognised on receipt of the fees.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified
in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.
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Unearned Revenue ("Contract Liability”)
Amounts billed and received or recoverable prior to the reporting date for services and such services or
part of such services are to be performed after the reporting date are recarded as contract liabilities as per

the provisions of the Ind AS-115 and shown in other current liabilities.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition: -

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the books and study material in case of sale
of books. ‘

At the time of entering into the agreement / raising an invoice, performance obligations in the
contract are identified. The Company delivers services as per the tenure and terms & condition of the
contract. Contracts are of differing natures and sometimes have one specific performance obligation,
and on other occasions have multiple performance obligations. Contract Liability has been created
towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations,

Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for certain incentive costs which
meet the criteria for capitalisation. Such costs are amortised over the contractual period or useful life
of contract whichever is less. The assessment of these criteria requires the application of judgement,
in particular when considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfy future

performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered.

e Income from faculty service charge income has been as per franchise agreement booked on
monthly basis calculated on per hour service provided by faculty to franchise centre.

Interest income

Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest
method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, net of recoverable taxes (wherever
applicable), which includes capitalised borrowing costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
sttributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.
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Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting
year in which they are incurred.

: - hods, estimated useful lives and residual val

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value over their useful life using straight fine method, and is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative
periods are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule I of the Act.

Particulars Useful lives (in years)
Tangible assets:

Furniture and fixtures 8-10
Electrical Installation 5
Office equipment 5
Computer equipment 3

RBased on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date
the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is
provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case
may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the
asset will flow to the company and where its cost can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost

less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price
and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. '

I ”{ !i, .i‘ )

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.
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Development expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the
expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible,
future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to
complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
as incurred.

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in the statement of profit and
loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets: Useful lives {in years)
Content development 7
GATE flix 10

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and
recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company'’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney
and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group
of CGUs) on a pro rata basis,
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After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over
its remaining useful life,

Borrowing cosis

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the berrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instrumants

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognised at fair value through profit
and loss, Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss is expensed in

the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial asse

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

e amortised cost;
¢ Fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), or
e Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, e;(cept if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

“,
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o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
alect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI ~ equity
investrment). This election is made on an investrment by investment basis.

Al financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at EVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

o the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice,
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of
the assets;

o how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Cormnpany’s management;

o the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

o how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

» the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

in assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument, This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

« contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

« terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; prepayment
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and extension features; and

o terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual
paramount, a feature that permils or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if
the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income
and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss o derecognition is
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses,
including any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under
the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OClL On Derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCE These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment, Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are

* subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

ili. Offsetting

Financial assets and monetary liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balanca sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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bv. Devecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership

and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred. assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss,

v. Impairment of financial instruments:
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
. Financial assets measured at FVOC!- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

o significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;
o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not

“consider otherwise;
o itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss:

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
fosses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
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12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit fosses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months),

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since. initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is refevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
agreed credit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

o the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

o the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit fosses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Leases:

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for fand and buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: () the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (jii) the

: Cbrﬁpany has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
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of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low vaiue leases. For these short-term and low-value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
ovei the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they
will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenaver
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option,

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU

. asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Inventories

Inventories comprising of traded goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The

. cost of inventories is based on the first in, first out formula.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable
value is made on an item by item basis.
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Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as
the related services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligation in the balance sheet.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum

payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in
an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon

completion of five years of service. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the company with respect to

gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for
past service cost as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled. The
resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation is recognised
as an income or expense in the other comprehensive income. The Company’s obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned

" in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount.

The Company's determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (‘past service cost' or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on
the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income,

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. ST LR
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Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferrad tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes,
Deferrad tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
tranisaction;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reparting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realizad or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date,

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
* which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be real.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT’) credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is
recognised as a deferred tax asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it in
the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, will flow to the Company and the asset can be
measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which the
Company becomes liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed
at each reporting date and is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be
~ available against which they can be used. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
probability of recognition of MAT credit entitlement.
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Contingent Liability, Contingent Asset and Provisions
Contingent liabili

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company.

Provisi

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weig hted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted into equity shares as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later
date,

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. ~

3



ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
MNotes to the Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

In accordance with Ind AS 108 ~ Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the
most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within
these industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. The
Company deals in one business namely “provision of education and related services".

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company's 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' or ‘CODM’ within
the meaning of Ind AS 108, Refer Note 32 for segment information.
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ICE Gata Educational Instituke Privite Limited
Motes to the financisl staterionts for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts are Rupees in Lacs unless othenvise stated)

Mote Ratio analvsis disclosure

Ratios: Formula: Amounts in| Yearendad | Yearended % Change Reason for variance
Rs. Lac  |March 31,2022 March 31,
e T4 b 3
Currant ratio Current assets 84,82 0,28 946 -3861%| Primary reason to be
Current liabifities 30018 atiributed to decrease in
cufrent assets
Debt equity ratio Total debt 93.70 7.06) 257 -375.00%] Due to low profitability
Total shareholder's equit {13.27) .
Debt service coverage ratio | Earpings available for debt (213011 [2.59) 3 -183.27%| Dua te low profitability
{Interest + instalments) 824
Return on equity ratio Net profit after taxes (43.88) (331 (113) 192.08%; Due to low profitability
Equity shareholders" funds {13.27)
Invetory tumover ratio Cost of goods sold 10.94 0.52 029 75.47%] Company is optimizing
Average Inventory 21,24 existing inventon:.__|
Trade receivable turnover ratio Credit sales 239.23 514 441 16.41%
Average accourits receivable 4657
Trade payables kurnover ratio Anpual niet credit purchases 1403 .18 0.06 196.62%| Due to negative cash
Average accounts payables 1614 flow from oparation
Net capital turnover ratio Cost of goods sold 10.94 0.82) 0.1% -532.91%| Company is optimizing
Net assets (13.27) existing inventary
Net profit ratio et profit (43.88) | 0.18) {0.070) 146.85%| Company is optimizing
Sales 239.23 existing.inventery |
(i) Return on capital employed ratio EBIT*100 (53.64}| 4.04) {0.69) 486.27%| Due to low profitability
(Pre tax) Capital employed (13.27)
{i#) Return on capital employed ratio CEBIT*(§-tax)* 100 (39.69) | 299 {0.79) 279.26%| Dueto low profitability
(Post tax) Capital employed (13.27)

The nationwide lockdown due to spread of COVID-19-and other significant restrictions imposed on the movementhad an impact on the sectors/ businesses that the
Company operates. The Manag t had, t + made necessary adjustments to its service and customer acquisition processes; moving to a largely Digital
model, thereby minimizing the business impact of the pandemic.

Post lifting of the lock down restrictions, the company has carried a comprehensive assessment of possible impact on its business operations, financial liabilities and
contractual obligations and its fiquidity position based on internal and external sources of information. The company doesn't see any significant risk in recoverability
of its assets or in its ablility to meet its financial fiabilities given the quick and effective steps taken to minimize the isk due to the pandemic. The managemeént

Despite deficiancy in shareholders' funds, the accounts of the Campany have been prepared on the going concern assumplion, as-the management is confident
about improvement in business activities based on future prospects and for continuous suppart from its holding company that the Comnpany may require to meet its
financial liabilities and business activities. ’

Othar statutory informations

The Company does not have any Benami propeity, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property,

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Regtrar of Companies "ROC") beyond the statutory period,

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currancy or Virtual Currency dusing the financial year.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding
that thie Intermediary shall

directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like to oron behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company does not receive any fund from any person(s) or entityliesh, including foreign entities (Fundirig Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or etherwise) that the Company shali

directly or indirecty lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) ar

provide any guarantee, security or the like td o on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company does not have transaction which is not recorded in the beoks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as.income during the yearin the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tax Ack, 1961,

These financiat statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors an May 19, 2022,

Previous year's figures havé been regrouped / reclassified as per the current period's prasentation for the purpose of comparabllity.

For NKSC & Co. For and on Behalf ¢ the Board of Director of
Ice Gate Edur.h?ﬁnﬂ Institute Private Limited

‘

Chartesed Accountants

Firmjfegi o/
: Wiz
. fﬁ e I
Naresh Sharma - Hgmal%hujain
Partner § 5 Director Bﬁquﬁr
Membership Mo 089123 DIN: 00033548 DIN: 07986359
Place: New Delhi ¢ Place: New Dethi . Place: New Dethi

Date: May 19, 2022 ‘ Date; May 19, 2022 jate; May 19, 2022
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ICE Gate Bducational Institute Private Limited
MNotes to the financisl statements for the year onded March 31, 2022
(Al arppunts are Rupees in lacs unless othenwise stated)

Note Ratio analvsis disclosure
i

Ratios: Formula: Amountsin]  Yearanded | Yearended % Changa Reason for varlance
Rs. Lae  [March 31, 2022  March 371,
Tl ]
Current ratio Current assets | 8482 0.28 0.46 -38.61%|  Primary reasan to be
Current liabilities 30018 atbributed to decrease in
currgnt assets
Debt equity ratio Total debt 93.70 {7.06) 257 -375.00%] Due to low profitability
Total shareholder's equity {13.27)
Debt service coverage ratio Earnings available for deb (21,300 (2,59 ERE ~183.27%| Dueto low profitability
iInterest + instalments) 824
Return-on equity ratio Met profit after taxes (43.88) (3.31) {113} 192.06%| Duete low profitability
Equity shareholders’ funds (13:27)
Invetory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold 10.94 0.52 0.29 7547%} Company is optimizing
) Average Inventory 21.24 existineinventory |
Trade receivable turnover ratio Credit sales | .. 23923 514 441 16.41%
Average accounts receivable 46,57
Trade payables turnover ratio Annual net eredit purchases 14.03 | 0.18 006 196.62% Due to negative cash
Average accounts payables 76.14 flow from operation
Net capital turaover ratio Cost of goods sold 1094 (082} 0.19 -53291%| Company is optimizing
Net assets (13.27) ) existing inventory
Net profit ratio Net profit (43.08) | (0.18) 0.07) 146.85%| Company is oplimizing
Sales 239.23 existing invenl
{i) Return on capital employed ratio EBIT*100 (53.64) (4.04) (0.69) 486.27%| Due to low profitability.
{Pre tax) Capital employed {13.27M ‘
{ii) Return on capital employed ratio EBIT*{1-tax}*100 {39,591 | (2.99) {0.79) 279.26%] Due to low profitability
{Post tax) Capital employed {13.27)

The nationwide lockdown due to spread of COVID-19 and other significant restrictions imposed on the inovement had an impact on the sectors/ businesses that the
Company operates. The Management had, however; made necessary adjustments to its service and customer acquisition processes, moving to a largely Digital
miodel, thereby minimizing the business impact of the pandemic,

Post lifting of the lock down restrictions, the company has carried a comprehensive assassment of possible impacton its business operations, financial liabilities and
contractual obligations and its liquidity position based an internal and external sources of information, The company doesn't see any significant risk in recoverability
of its assets or in its abilily to meet its financial liabilities given the quick and effective steps taken to minimize the risk due to the pandemic. The management

Despite deficiency.irs shareholders' funds, the accounts of the Company have been prepared on the geing concern assumption, as the management is confident

about improvement in business activities based on future prospects and for continuous support from its hol

financial liabilities and business activities;

Other statutory informations

ding company that the Company may require to meet its

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.
The Campany does not have any fransactions with companies struck off.
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Regtrar of Companies "ROC") beyond the statutory period.
The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other personts) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding

that the Intermediary shall

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company does not receive any fund from any person(s)or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in
wiriting or othenwise) that the Company shafl
directly oz indirectly lend or invest in-other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantée, security or the like to orion behalf f the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company does not have transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during theyear in the tax
assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961 (suich as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961,

These financial staternents were authorized for issue by Board of Directors on May 19, 2022,

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified as per the current peried’s presentation for the purpose of comparability.

For NKSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Nbresh Sharma i
Partner (RS
Membership No.: 0891“?@” n

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 19, 2022

B

For and on Behalfﬁf the Baard of Director of
Ice Gate Eductﬁﬁnal Institute Private Limited

Gnu’gam Puri
Director
[iN: 00033548

Place: New Dalhi

Date: May 19, 2022

/A

r her e
;{/ :ﬁs{;&,w
Himarishu Jain
ol ectpr

DIN: 07986359

«

Place: New Delhi
Date; May 19, 2022



